
 

March 23, 2023~6:00 PM Oroville Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 4 

OROVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION/ 
HISTORICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

Council Chambers 
1735 Montgomery Street 

Oroville, CA. 95965 
 
 

March 23, 2023 
REGULAR MEETING 

6:00 PM 
AGENDA 

 

 
PUBLIC ACCESS AND PARTICIPATION  
 
To view the meeting or provide comment, please see the options below. 
 
To Watch or Listen to the Meeting:  

1. Watch live feed https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCAoRW34swYl85UBfYqT7IbQ/  
2. Zoom https://zoom.us/j/99508232402?pwd=aThZc1BsUG9sWnhNYnlwZHZZdFFrQT09 

Meeting ID: 995 0823 2402 Passcode: 17351735 
3. Listen via telephone: 1-669-900-9128 

Meeting ID: 995 0823 2402 Passcode: 17351735 

To Provide Comments:  
1. Email before the meeting by 2:00 PM your comments to publiccomment@cityoforoville.org  

2. Attend in person  
 

If you would like to address the Commission at this meeting, you are requested to complete the 
blue speaker request form (located on the wall by the agendas) and hand it to the City Clerk, who 
is seated on the right of the Council Chamber.  The form assists the Clerk with minute taking and 
assists the Mayor or presiding chair in conducting an orderly meeting. Providing personal 
information on the form is voluntary.  For scheduled agenda items, please submit the form prior 
to the conclusion of the staff presentation for that item.  The Commission has established time 
limitations of three (3) minutes per speaker on all items and an overall time limit of thirty minutes for non-
agenda items. If more than 10 speaker cards are submitted for non-agenda items, the time limitation 
would be reduced to one and a half minutes per speaker. (California Government Code §54954.3(b)). 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2, the Commission is prohibited from taking action except 
for a brief response from the Council or staff to statements or questions relating to a non-agenda item. 

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL          

Commissioners: Glenn Arace, Marissa Hallen, Natalie Sheard, Warren Jensen, Vice Chairperson 
Wyatt Jenkins, Chairperson Carl Durling 

OPEN SESSION  

     Pledge of Allegiance 
 

 

 

1

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCAoRW34swYl85UBfYqT7IbQ/
https://zoom.us/j/99508232402?pwd=aThZc1BsUG9sWnhNYnlwZHZZdFFrQT09
mailto:publiccomment@cityoforoville.org


 

March 23, 2023~6:00 PM Oroville Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 4 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – HEARING OF NON-AGENDA ITEMS  

This is the time to address the Commission about any item not listed on the agenda. If you wish to 
address the Commission on an item listed on the agenda, please follow the directions listed above. 

CONSENT CALENDAR  

Consent calendar items are adopted in one action by the Commission. Items that are removed will be 
discussed and voted on immediately after adoption of consent calendar items. 

2. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 

The Commission may approve the minutes of February 23, 2023 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the minutes of February 23, 2023 

PUBLIC HEARINGS  

The Public Hearing Procedure is as follows: 

- Mayor or Chairperson opens the public hearing. 
- Staff presents and answers questions from Council 
- The hearing is opened for public comment limited to two (2) minutes per speaker. In the 

event of more than ten (10) speakers, time will be limited to one and a half (1.5) minutes. 
Under Government Code 54954.3, the time for each presentation may be limited.  

- Public comment session is closed 
- Commission debate and action 

 
3. MINOR USE PERMIT UP23-05 FOR THREE GARAGES FOR A PRIVATE VEHICLE 

COLLECTION AT 1801 MYERS STREET(APN 012-160-055) 

The Oroville Planning Commission will review and consider approving Use Permit No. UP23-05 
to allow the applicant to construct three domed “Quonset Hut-style” storage buildings for a private 
hobby vehicle collection. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Conduct a Public Hearing on the proposed project. 

Adopt the Notice of Exemption as the appropriate level of environmental review in accordance 
with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); 

Adopt the recommended Findings for Use Permit No. UP23-05. 

Approve Use Permit UP23-05 and recommended Conditions of Approval. 

Adopt Resolution No. P2023-05 

 

 

 

2



 

March 23, 2023~6:00 PM Oroville Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 4 

4. MINOR USE PERMIT UP23-03 FOR ALCOHOL SALES AT LUCKYS FOOD AND GAS AT 2301 
OROVILLE DAM BOULEVARD EAST 

The Oroville Planning Commission will review and consider approving Use Permit No. UP23-03 
to allow the applicant to conduct alcohol sales at the existing Luckys Food and Gas at 2301 
Oroville Dam Boulevard East. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Conduct a Public Hearing on the proposed project; 

Adopt the Notice of Exemption as the appropriate level of environmental review in accordance 
with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); 

Adopt the recommended Findings for Use Permit No. UP23-03; 

Approve Use Permit UP23-03 and recommended Conditions of Approval; 

Approve a Letter of Public Convenience or Necessity, should it be determined by ABC that 
an overconcentration exists; 

Adopt Resolution No. P2023-07 

5. LINKSIDE PLACE 2 SUBDIVISION TENTATIVE MAP EXTENSION #3 (Final) 

The Oroville Planning Commission may consider extending the existing Tentative Subdivision 
Map for Linkside Place 2 until June 10, 2024. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Conduct a Public Hearing to consider extending the existing Subdivision Map. 

Approve the Map extension until April 26, 2024.  

Adopt Resolution No. P2023-04 extending the deadline for filing a Final Subdivision Map for TSM 
07-04 for one year until June 10, 2024, with the stipulation that approval of the Final Map shall 
remain subject to all other conditions of approval identified in the Letter of Approval dated April 
26, 2016.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3



 

March 23, 2023~6:00 PM Oroville Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 4 of 4 

6. MINOR USE PERMIT UP23-04 FOR A RESIDENTIAL ADDITION WITH ATTACHED GARAGE 
TO BE USED FORA  LARGE FAMILY DAY CARE AND FUTURE DAY CARE CENTER 

The Oroville Planning Commission will review and consider approving Use Permit No. UP23-04 
to allow a residential addition to be used for a large family day care and potential future child day 
care center. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Conduct a Public Hearing on the proposed project; 

Adopt the Notice of Exemption as the appropriate level of environmental review in accordance 
with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); 

Adopt the recommended Findings for Use Permit No. UP23-04; 

Approve Use Permit UP23-04 and recommended Conditions of Approval; 

Adopt Resolution No. P2023-06 

REPORTS / DISCUSSIONS / CORRESPONDENCE 

1.   Commissioner Reports 

2.   Historical Advisory Commission Reports 

3.   Staff Reports 

ADJOURN THE MEETING 

The meeting will be adjourned. A regular meeting of the Oroville Planning Commission will be held on 
April 27, 2023 at 6:00 PM. 

 
Accommodating Those Individuals with Special Needs – In compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, the City of Oroville encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 
meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 538-2535, well in advance of the regular meeting you 
wish to attend, so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you. Documents distributed 
for public session items, less than 72 hours prior to meeting, are available for public inspection at City 
Hall, 1735 Montgomery Street, Oroville, California. 
 
Recordings - All meetings are recorded and broadcast live on cityoforoville.org and YouTube. 
 
Planning Commission Decisions - Any person who is dissatisfied with the decisions of this Planning 
Commission may appeal to the City Council by filing with the Zoning Administrator within fifteen days 
from the date of the action.  A written notice of appeal specifying the grounds and an appeal fee 
immediately payable to the City of Oroville must be submitted at the time of filing.  The Oroville City 
Council may sustain, modify or overrule this decision. 

4



 

February 23, 2023~6:00 PM Oroville Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 3 

OROVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION/ 
HISTORICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

Council Chambers 
1735 Montgomery Street 

Oroville, CA. 95965 
 
 

February 23, 2023 
MINUTES 

 

This agenda was posted at 4pm on Monday, Feburary 20, 2023. This meeting was recorded and may be 
viewed at cityoforoville.org or on YouTube.  

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL          

Vice Chairperson Jenkins opened the meeting at 6pm. 

PRESENT: Commissioners: Glenn Arace, Marissa Hallen, Natalie Sheard, Warren Jensen, Vice 
Chairperson Wyatt Jenkins 

ABSENT: Chairperson Carl Durling 

STAFF: Assistant Community Development Director Dawn Nevers, Assistant City Clerk Jackie 
Glover, Principal Planner Wes Ervin, Assistant Planner Danny Kopshever, 
Administrative Intern Nancy Lao 

OPEN SESSION  

Pledge of Allegiance – Led by Vice Chairperson Jenkins 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – HEARING OF NON-AGENDA ITEMS  

There were 0 public speakers at this meeting.  

CONSENT CALENDAR  

2. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 

The Planning Commission approved the minutes of January 26, 2023.  

Motion by Commissioner Sheard and seconded by Commissioner Hallen to approve the 
minutes of January 26, 2023. Motion passed.  

PUBLIC HEARINGS   

3. MINOR USE PERMIT UP23-02 FOR AN ADDITION AND NEW DRIVE-THROUGH TO BE USED 
AS A MEMBER'S ONLY PHARMACY.  

The Oroville Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving Use Permit No. UP23-02 
for an addition to an existing building and construction of a new drive-through with associated site 
improvements at 2145 5th Avenue. Related Projects (B2212-072 & PL2212-010) 

Motion by commissioner Jensen and seconded by Commissioner Sheard to adopt the Notice of 
Exemption as the appropriate level of environmental review in accordance with the California 

5

Item 2.



 

February 23, 2023~6:00 PM Oroville Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 3 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and adopt the recommended Findings for Use Permit No. 
UP23-02; and approve Use Permit UP23-02 and recommended Conditions of Approval; and 
adopt Resolution No. P2023-02. Motion passed.  

4. MINOR USE PERMIT UP23-01 FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW 7,800 SQUARE FOOT 
METAL BUILDING USED FOR OFFICE SPACE AND A WAREHOUSE AT 2640 SOUTH 5TH 
AVENUE (APN 035-380-060) 

The Oroville Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving Use Permit No. UP23-01 
for the construction of a new 7,800 square foot metal building used for office space and 
warehouse storage serving and adjacent to the North Valley Food Bank at 2640 South 5th 
Avenue. Project# PL2301-003 

Motion by Commissioner Hallen and seconded by Commissioner Jensen to adopt the Notice of 
Exemption as the appropriate level of environmental review in accordance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and adopt the recommended Findings for Use Permit No. 
UP23-01; and approve Use Permit UP23-01 and recommended Conditions of Approval; and 
adopt Resolution No. P2023-01; and waive having the applicant provide a lighting plan. Motion 
passed.  

5. MINOR USE PERMIT UP23-03 FOR A DRIVE-THROUGH CAR WASH ON FEATHER RIVER 
BLVD NORTH OF ORO DAM BLVD APN (035-030-109)  

The Oroville Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving Use Permit No. UP23-05 
for the construction of a new 3,365 square foot car wash building with associated car wash tunnel, 
equipment room, and a 660 square foot pay station building with office and restrooms. The project 
also includes 18 standard vacuum stalls and one van accessible vacuum stall under canopies 
fitted with solar panels. 

Motion by Commissioner Sheard and seconded by Commissioner Arace to adopt the Notice of 
Exemption as the appropriate level of environmental review in accordance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and adopt the recommended Findings for Use Permit No. 
UP23-03; and approve Use Permit UP23-03 and recommended Conditions of Approval; and 
adopt Resolution No. P2023-03. Motion passed.  

REPORTS / DISCUSSIONS / CORRESPONDENCE 

6. Commissioner Reports - None 

7. Historical Advisory Commission Reports – Commissioner Sheard requested Daniel Ballard 
provide a presentation on the Ghianda Residence. Daniel Ballard presented on the Ghianda 
Residence.  

 Commissioner Sheard and Commissioner Jensen requested staff speak with the property owner 
about a potential future monument honoring the Ghianda residence.   

8. Staff Reports 

 Ervin – Provided and update on current and upcoming projects that the department is 
working on.  

 Glover – Spoke about the Sam Norris Award, Your Voice of the Arts Award, Training, 
and the Form 700 

 

6

Item 2.



 

February 23, 2023~6:00 PM Oroville Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 3 

ADJOURN THE MEETING 

Vice Chairperson Jenkins adjourned the meeting at 7pm. 

 

APPROVED:       ATTESTED: 

 

 

__________________________________   ___________________________________ 
Vice Chairperson Wyatt Jenkins    Assistant City Clerk Jackie Glover 

7

Item 2.



 1 

 

City of Oroville 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2430   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

        
  

 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT Thursday, March 23, 2023 

RE: Minor Use Permit UP23-05 for three garages for a private vehicle collection at 1801 
Myers Street (APN 012-160-055) 

SUMMARY:  The Oroville Planning Commission will review and consider approving Use Permit 
No. UP23-05 to allow the applicant to construct three domed “Quonset Hut-style” storage 
buildings for a private hobby vehicle collection. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the following actions: 

1. Conduct a Public Hearing on the proposed project. 

2. Adopt the Notice of Exemption as the appropriate level of environmental review in 
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); 

3. Adopt the recommended Findings for Use Permit No. UP23-05. 

4. Approve Use Permit UP23-05 and recommended Conditions of Approval. 

5. Adopt Resolution No. P2023-05 

 

APPLICANT: Dr. Steve Horn Comprehensive Care  

LOCATION:  1801 Myers Street, Oroville, 
California (APN 012-160-055)  
 
 
Trakit# PL2302-015, B2302-096, 097, 098 

GENERAL PLAN:  MU (Mixed Use) 

ZONING:  MXD (Downtown Mixed Use) 

FLOOD ZONE:  Zone X 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:   Categorically Exempt per Section 15332 of Title 14, 
California Code of Regulations, Infill Development Projects.  

REPORT PREPARED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Wes Ervin, Principal Planner 
Community Development Department 

REVIEWED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Dawn Nevers, Assistant Director 
Community Development Department 

8

Item 3.

http://www.cityoforoville.org/


 2 

DISCUSSION 

The applicant has applied for a Minor Use Permit to construct three storage buildings of 
1,006, 1,006, and 705 square feet respectively at 1801 Myers Street.  The applicant 
intends to store a vehicle and hobby collection in the buildings and to do minor 
maintenance. The parcel will not be open to the public. Each unit includes a bathroom, 
with the central building having an Accessible bathroom.  Applicant has confirmed that 
none of the buildings will be open to the public or used for residential or commercial 
purposes.  

The property has a zoning designation of Downtown Mixed Use (MXD), which allows 
Parking garages or lots with a Use Permit per OMC Table 17.34.020-1.  

In addition to the initial application, applicant attended the March 9, 2023 Development 
Review Committee meeting where he provided a hand drawn site plan with information 
staff requested for a complete Use Permit application.  

Regarding building design, the parcel is just outside the Downtown Historic Overlay, 
and therefore is not technically required to use the “Turn-of-the-Century” theme in 
building design.  However, the three Quonset-hut style buildings are unlike any of the 
neighboring structures, so staff has been reassured that the project will not be 
incompatible with the surrounding buildings. The structures are mentioned as 
“galvanized steel”.   Though the sides of the buildings will remain metallic in color, they 
will not be shiny or easily visible from neighboring parcels.  The fronts of the buildings 
will be fully decorated and painted. Relevant guidelines from Oroville’s Design 
Guidelines include: 

Compatibility 
2.2.1 Commercial development should be compatible with surrounding land uses 
from both a functional and aesthetic standpoint. 
2.2.2 Buildings should be compatible with the height, massing, setback, and 
design character of surrounding uses. New development should contribute to the 
visual quality and cohesiveness of its setting but need not imitate or mimic 
adjacent development. 

2.3 Adjacent Views 
2.3.1 Commercial development should not create unattractive views from 
neighboring uses by orienting blank building walls toward neighbors. Any visible 
building walls should incorporate architectural elements to create visual interest. 

Applicant has simultaneously submitted the building plan set which can be approved 
after the Use Permit is approved.  Relevant building review items include: 

1. Detailed Landscape and irrigation plans will be needed prior to approval of the 
Building Plan set. Because of the small size of the landscaped area, the plans will 
not need to be completed by a licensed landscape architect, nor will WELO 
standards be required. 

2. Parking spaces – (1 space per 1,000 s.f.) per OMC Table 17.12.070-1. The 
minimum 4 required spaces have been delineated on the new site plan. An 
accessible space is NOT required since this facility is not open to the public. 

9

Item 3.



 3 

3. A civil drawing detailing site drainage will be required prior to approval of the 
Building Plan set. 

4. The required external lighting plan was not provided, but applicant provided the type 
of lighting to be mounted on each building, which will not affect adjacent properties. 

5. Plans show 4 feet between buildings and three feet at the side concrete block wall, 
which is acceptable to the Building Department. 

6. The nearest hydrant (yellow) is located at the northwest corner of Kitrick and Myers, 
close enough for adequate fire service. 

7. All trash will all be collected within the private buildings and emptied regularly. A 
trash enclosure is not required. 

8. The Building Dept will require that the plans show how water and electricity will be 
brought into each building. 

9. Tthe applicant will pave the encroachment entrance with a flagstone pattern. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT  
None.  The project is subject to all customary fees. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
A request for comments was prepared and circulated to the local agencies and surrounding 
property owners within 500 feet of the property. Additionally, the meeting date, time, and 
project description were published in the Oroville Mercury Register and posted at 
City Hall. 
 
 

PROPOSED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

General Conditions 

1. The applicant shall hold harmless the City, its Council members, Planning 
Commissioners, officers, agents, employees, and representatives from 
liability for any award, damages, costs, and/or fees incurred by the City 
and/or awarded to any plaintiff in an action challenging the validity of this 
permit or any environmental or other documentation related to approval of 
this permit. Applicant further agrees to provide a defense for the City in any 
such action.  

2. The project shall remain in substantial conformance with the Conditions of 
Approval, as adopted by the Oroville Planning Commission. Any subsequent 
minor changes in the project (as determined by the Zoning Administrator) 
may only occur subject to appropriate City review and approval. Any 
subsequent substantive changes in the project (as determined by the Zoning 
Administrator) may only occur subject to discretionary review by the Oroville 
Planning Commission.   

3. All private facilities, improvements, infrastructure, systems, equipment, 
common areas, etc. shall be operated and maintained by the applicant in 

10

Item 3.



 4 

such a manner, and with such frequency, to ensure the public health, safety 
and general welfare. 

4. All costs of operation and maintenance of private facilities, improvements, 
infrastructure, systems, equipment, common areas, etc. shall be the 
responsibility of the applicant. 

5. Pursuant to Section 17.12.010, the proposed use of the site shall conform to 
the performance standards of the Oroville Municipal Code to minimize any 
potential negative effects that the building, structure, lighting or use could 
have on its surroundings, and to promote compatibility with surrounding uses 
and areas.  

6. Applicable construction plans, calculations, specifications, applications, 
forms, etc. shall be submitted to the Building Division for review prior to the 
start of any construction activities requiring a building permit. All applicable 
plan review and development impact fees shall be paid at time of submittal.  

7. The applicant shall ascertain and comply with the requirements of all of City, 
County, State, Federal, and other local agencies as applicable to the 
proposed project.   

8. The project shall comply with the City’s noise ordinance as found in the OMC 
Chapter 9.20.  

9. Pursuant to Section 17.48.010(F) of the City Code, the Planning Commission, 
upon its own motion, may modify or revoke any use permit that has been 
granted pursuant to the provisions of this section upon finding any of the 
following, based on substantial evidence:  

a. Any of the conditions of the permit have not been satisfied within 1 year 
after it was granted.  

b. Any of the terms or conditions of the permit have been violated.  

c. A law, including any requirement in the Municipal Code Chapter 17, has 
been violated in connection with the permit.  

d. The permit was obtained by fraud.  

10. Applicant hereby certifies that any and all statements and information 
provided as part of the application are true and correct to the best of their 
knowledge and belief. Any misinformation provided, whether intentional or 
unintentional, that was considered in the issuance of this permit may be 
grounds for revocation. 

11. The applicant or property owner shall apply for the proper permits as required 
by OMC Chapter 17.20 prior to any new signage being erected.  

12. No more than 25% of any window area shall be covered with signs. This 
includes both permanent and temporary signs used to identify the business, 
products sold, or services offered. 

13. Any roof mounted or ground placed utilities (HVAC, generators, etc.) shall 
include an architecturally compatible method of screening. This can include 

11

Item 3.



 5 

screening by landscaping or a decorative fence for ground placed utilities. 

14. The exterior of the building, including windows and doors, shall be 
maintained, and with such frequency, to ensure the public health, safety and 
general welfare of the city. 

15. A refuse collection enclosure shall be provided in accordance with City Code 
17.12.110. The refuse area shall be large enough to provide adequate 
storage for solid waste and recyclable materials generated by the use. Not 
required. 

16. Windows and doors shall not be boarded up or blocked unless the 
appropriate approvals are received to ensure the public health, safety and 
general welfare. This does not include the use of plywood or other material 
used to cover a window for a temporary period of time that constitutes a 
safety hazard and/or invites trespassers and malicious mischief.Not required. 

17. Minor changes may be approved administratively by the Community 
Development Director or designee upon receipt of a written request by the 
applicant or designee.  Changes deemed to be major or significant in nature 
shall require a formal application for amendment.  

18. Applicant and/or property owner will take appropriate measures to provide 
property maintenance of the building exterior, including provisions to keep the 
premise free of litter and debris.  

19. Applicant and/or property owner shall ensure adequate lighting of exterior 
areas, including parking lots, to discourage loitering outside of the buildings. 

20. Applicant and/or property owner will ensure protection of adjacent properties 
from noise, odors and undue light and glare, as well as illegal activity.  

21. Applicant and/or property owner will maintain adequate onsite security, both 
inside and outside the building, to satisfy any concerns raised by the chief of 
police or general public.  

 

Specific Project Permit Conditions 

1. If any business is ever conducted on the site, the applicant shall annually pay 
for and obtain a City of Oroville business license and obtain an amended Use 
Permit. 

2. Prior to building plan approval, applicant must submit landscaping plans to be 

approved by the Director of Parks and Streets. 

3. Pursuant to Section 17.12.050(L), the property owner shall enter into a written 
agreement for the installation and maintenance of landscaping. The agreement 
shall be in a form approved by the City Attorney and Zoning Administrator and 
suitable for recordation with the Butte County Recorder. 

4. Signage is not included in this Use Permit. Any signage will require a new 

building permit submittal. 

12

Item 3.



 6 

5. The quantity, locations and striping of all primary and shared parking shall be 

shown in the building plans upon permit submittal. 

6. Applicant has stated that this property is used for private storage purposes and 

not for any commercial or residential purpose. If the use changes in any way, 

new Occupancy or Use Permit will be required.   
 

--- End of Conditions --- 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Application Package 
2. Hand drawn site plan presented at March 9 DRC meeting 
3. Resolution P2023-05 
4. Notice of Exemption (CEQA) 

 

 

 

 

13

Item 3.



14

Item 3.



15

Item 3.



16

Item 3.



17

Item 3.



18

Item 3.



19

Item 3.



20

Item 3.



21

Item 3.



 
 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. P2023-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MAKING 
FINDINGS AND CONDITIONALLY APPROVING USE PERMIT NO. UP23-05 
PERMITTING A NEW PRIVATE GARAGE PROJECT AT 1801 MYERS STREET (APN 
012-060-055). 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Oroville staff recommends approving a new three-
building private garage development proposed by the applicant, Dr. Steve Horn 
Comprehensive Care; and 

 
 WHEREAS, per the City of Oroville Municipal Code (OMC) The property has a 
zoning designation of Downtown Mixed Use (MXD) and a General Plan Land Use 
designation of Mixed Use (MU), and  

WHEREAS, OMC Table 17.34.020-1 specifies that a parking lot or garage as a 
primary use requires a use permit, and as a condition of approval, the applicant will be 
required to comply with all requirements of the City’s Zoning Code as found in the OMC 
Chapter 17, including, but not limited to, development standards, permit requirements 
and development review; and 
 

WHEREAS, at a duly noticed public hearing, the Planning Commission 
considered the comments and concerns of public agencies, property owners, and 
members of the public who are potentially affected by the approval of the use permit 
described herein, and also considered the City’s staff report regarding the project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION as 
follows: 
 

1. This action has been determined to be exempt from the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) review pursuant to Title 14, California Code of Regulations, 
Section 15332 “In-Fill Development Projects.” 
 
2. The Planning Commission approves the findings required by OMC 17.48.010 

for use permits, as those findings are described in this Resolution to move 
forward to the Oroville City Council for final review and approval. 

 

3. The Planning Commission approves Use Permit # UP23-05 with the 
conditions described in the March 23, 2023, staff report. 

22

Item 3.



 
 

2 

FINDINGS 

Use Permit No. UP 25-05 
 

 
Pursuant to Section 17.48.010(E)(4) of the Oroville Municipal Code, the Planning 
Commission may grant a use permit only upon making all of the following 
findings, based on substantial evidence: 

 
a. The granting of the permit will not be incompatible with or detrimental to 

the general health, safety or public welfare of the surrounding area or of the City 
as a whole. 

 
Per City Code 17.48.010, the intent of use permits is to provide an opportunity to 
review the location, site development or conduct of certain land uses, activities 
and structural features that generally have a distinct impact on the area in which 
they are located or are capable of creating special problems for bordering 
properties unless given careful attention. For this reason, such uses are 
permitted through discretionary review and the powers granted to the Planning 
Commission include attaching any conditions to the use permit that are deemed 
necessary to achieve the purpose of the Zoning Code, and also promote the 
general health, safety, and public welfare of the City. 

 
After a thorough review of the project, the approval of this use permit has been 
conditioned to ensure that under no circumstance will the project be incompatible 
with or detrimental to the general health, safety or public welfare of the 
surrounding area or of the City as a whole without there being an appropriate 
course of action to remedy any potential issues or revoke the permit in 
accordance with section 17.48.010 of the City Code. Conditions of approval 
include, but are not limited to, compliance with all City zoning, engineering, 
building, landscaping, and public work standards in addition to any other federal, 
State, or local regulations that may be applicable. 

 
b. The proposed use follows sound principles of land use by having a suitable 

location relative to the community as a whole, as well as to transportation facilities, 
public services and other land uses in the vicinity. 

 
The proposed private garage project is located on Myers Street in a quiet area 
near several like-sized commercial activities and some residences. This proposed 
location is suitable relative to the community as a whole, as well as to 
transportation facilities, public services and other land uses in the vicinity. 

 
c. Public utilities and facilities, including streets and highways, water and sanitation, 

are adequate to serve the proposed use or will be made adequate prior to the 
establishment of the proposed use. 

 

23

Item 3.



 
 

3 

The site is previously developed with all existing utilities available. Power is 
provided by PG&E, telephone by AT&T, cable by Comcast, sewer by the City of 
Oroville, and water by the California Water Service Company (Cal Water). The 
proposed development will be required to pay all applicable development 
impact fees and be constructed according to current engineering, development 
and building code standards. Prior to the issuance of final building occupancy, 
the Building Division will inspect all on-site improvements and the Engineering 
Division will inspect all off-site improvements to ensure improvements were 
completed as identified on the city approved plans for issuance of building 
permits and other development related permits as applicable. If at the time of 
inspection any inadequacies in water, sanitation or utilities that are required to 
be supplied to the site are found, the applicant will be required to make the site 
adequate prior to the issuance of the certificate of occupancy. 

 
d. The location, size, design and operating characteristics of the proposed use will 

be harmonious and compatible with the surrounding neighborhood and will not 
adversely affect abutting properties. 

 
The proposed project is surrounded by a mix of existing urban properties with 
most Zoned Downtown Mixed-Use (MXD). The City requires a use permit for 
parking garages as a primary use in this Zone. 

 
In the event the project results in any unforeseen adverse effects, pursuant to 
section 17.48.010(F) of the Zoning Code, the Planning Commission may take 
action to revoke a use permit if any of the following occur: any of the conditions 
of approval have not been satisfied within 1 year after it was granted; any of the 
terms or conditions of the permit have been violated; a law, including any 
requirement in the Zoning Code, has been violated in connection with the permit; 
and finally, if the permit was obtained by fraud. 

 
Thus, it has been determined that the location, size, design and operating 
characteristics of the proposed use will be harmonious and compatible with the 
surrounding neighborhood and will not adversely affect abutting properties. 

 
e. The subject site is physically suitable for the type and intensity of land use being 

proposed. 
 

The applicant has submitted a set of drawings demonstrating that, as 
proposed, the subject site is physically suitable for the type and intensity of 
land use being proposed. Almost all activities will occur inside with minimal 
noise or disturbance.  

 
f. The size, intensity, and location of the proposed use will provide services that are 

necessary or desirable for the neighborhood and community as a whole. 
 

24

Item 3.



 
 

4 

The location supports the goals of the City’s General Plan and the size, intensity, 
and location of the proposed use will add a desirable land use for the 
neighborhood and community as a whole. 

 

g. The permit complies with all applicable laws and regulations, including the 
requirements of the General Plan, Zoning Code, and of the City’s Municipal 
Code. 
 

The permit application has been reviewed by staff and the proposed project has 
been found to comply with all applicable laws and regulations, including the 
applicable requirements of the City’s 2030 General Plan, Zoning Code, and other 
applicable portions of the City’s Municipal Code. As a condition of this permit, the 
applicants shall be required to ascertain and comply with the requirements of all 
Federal, State, County, City and other local agencies as applicable to the 
proposed use and project site. 

 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was duly introduced and passed at a 
regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Oroville held on the 23rd of 
March 2023, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT:  

ATTEST:           APPROVE:             
 
 
                                                                                                  
_______________________________              _______________________________ 
JACKIE GLOVER, ASSISTANT CITY CLERK     CARL DURLING, CHAIRPERSON 

25

Item 3.



26

Item 3.



27

Item 3.



28

Item 3.



29

Item 3.



30

Item 3.



31

Item 3.



32

Item 3.



33

Item 3.



 1 

 

City of Oroville 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2430   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

        
 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT Thursday, March 23, 2023 

RE: Minor Use Permit UP23-03 for Alcohol Sales at the Luckys Food and Gas at 2301 
Oroville Dam Boulevard East. 

SUMMARY:  The Oroville Planning Commission will review and consider approving Use Permit 
No. UP23-03 to allow the applicant to conduct alcohol sales at the existing Luckys Food and 
Gas at 2301 Oroville Dam Boulevard East. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the following actions: 

1. Conduct a Public Hearing on the proposed project; 

2. Adopt the Notice of Exemption as the appropriate level of environmental review in 
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); 

3. Adopt the recommended Findings for Use Permit No. UP23-03; 

4. Approve Use Permit UP23-03 and recommended Conditions of Approval; 

5. Approve a Letter of Public Convenience or Necessity, should it be determined by ABC 
that an overconcentration exists; 

6. Adopt Resolution No. P2023-07 

 

APPLICANT: Gurveen Gill 

LOCATION:  2301 Oro Dam Blvd E (APN 
035-500-047)  
 

 

GENERAL PLAN:  MU (Mixed Use) 

ZONING:  MXC (Corridor Mixed Use) 

FLOOD ZONE:  Zone X 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:   Categorically Exempt per Section 15301 of Title 14, 
California Code of Regulations, Existing Facilities.  

REPORT PREPARED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Daniel Kopshever, Assistant Planner 
Community Development Department 

REVIEWED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Dawn Nevers, Assistant Director 
Community Development Department 

34

Item 4.

http://www.cityoforoville.org/


 2 

DISCUSSION 

Gurveen Gill has applied for a Use Permit on behalf of the store owner to allow for alcohol 
sales to be conducted at Luckys Food and Gas at 2301 Oroville Dam Blvd East. The 
existing storefront building is 1,200 square feet, located on the corner of Spencer Avenue 
and Oroville Dam Blvd East. The property is currently zoned Corridor Mixed Use (MXC). 
According to the Oroville Municipal Code (OMC), alcoholic beverage sales in an MXC 
zone requires a Use Permit. 

The applicant has submitted a Type 20 ABC license to allow for beer and wine sales for 
off-site consumption, this would be alongside their other grocery/market offerings.  

Alcohol Sales: The proposed liquor store is located in Census Tract 30.01 which includes 
the South Oroville area south of Oro Dam Blvd, east of Lincoln Blvd, north of Oro Bangor 
Hwy, and west of Lower Wyandotte. Within the vicinity of the proposed liquor store, there 
are 5 other retailers that sell alcoholic beverages: 

 
1. 1901 Oro Dam Blvd (Mountain Mikes Pizza) – License Type 41 – On-Sale Beer 

and Wine – Eating Place 

2. 1911 Oro Dam Blvd (Dollar Tree) – License Type 20 – Off-Sale Beer and Wine 

3. 1835 Oro Dam Blvd (Tacos Tijuana) – License Type 40 – On-Sale Beer  

4. 2588 Olive Hwy (Celestino’s New York Pizza) – License Type 41 – On-Sale Beer 

and Wine – Eating Place 

5.  2546 Olive Hwy (Town & Country Liquor) – License Type 21 – Off-Sale Beer, 

Wine, and Distilled Spirits 

If it is determined by the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC) that an 

overconcentration of licenses exists, a letter of public convenience or necessity (PCN) 

will be required. Staff is requesting that the commission, should they approve UP 23-03, 

also preemptively authorize a PCN letter to be sent to ABC. 

Required Findings for Alcohol Sales (OMC 17.16.160) 

Before approving a use permit for alcohol sales, the Planning Commission must consider 
each of the following issues and make appropriate findings (Staff’s comments are in 
italics, draft findings are in the Resolution):  

1. The nature of all land uses within 500 feet of the proposed alcoholic 

beverage sales, and in particular, the location of similar nearby uses and the 

location of residences, parks, schools and houses of worship.  

Lucky Food and Gas is located on the corner of Oroville Dam Blvd East and 

Spencer Avenue in close proximity to similar retail and food stores. These 

retail and food uses include A-1 Kwik Services gas station, La Flor de 

Michoacan Homemade Ice Cream, Dutch Bros Coffee, and various banking 

and office services. There are not any nearby assembly areas and the 

closest residences are to the southeast, along Spencer and Brown Avenues. 

2. Appropriate measures to provide proper maintenance of the building 

exterior, including provisions to keep the premises free of litter and debris. 

35

Item 4.



 3 

 The requirement is added to the project conditions.  

3. Lighting of exterior areas, including parking lots, to discourage loitering outside of 
the building. 

 The requirement is added to the project conditions.  

4. Protection of adjacent properties from noise, odors and undue light and glare, as 
well as illegal activity. 

 This requirement is added to the project conditions. Code compliance officers 
will monitor for compliance on an ongoing basis.  

 
5. Provision of onsite security, both inside and outside the building, to satisfy 

any concerns raised by the chief of police. 

 This requirement is added to the project conditions. Code compliance 

officers will monitor for compliance on an ongoing basis. 

6. Hours of operation. 

 Applicant states that the hours of operation are from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 
daily, which are unchanged from the existing operation. 

7. Controls on occupancy limits inside of the building and loitering outside of the 
building. 

 This requirement is added to the project conditions. Code compliance officers 
will monitor for compliance on an ongoing basis. 

8. Prevention of adverse effect of the use on the value of adjacent properties. 

As an existing gas station and market, this use permit is likely to enhance the 

patronage and thus the value of adjacent properties; 

9. Whether approval would result in an undue concentration of these uses, and 

whether public convenience or necessity would mitigate the issue of undue 

concentration. 

The Police Department and ABC determine if there is an undue 

concentration in the area. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT  
None.  The project is subject to all customary fees. 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
A request for comments was prepared and circulated to the local agencies and 
surrounding property owners within 500 feet of the property. Additionally, the meeting 
date, time, and project description were published in the Oroville Mercury 
Register and posted at City Hall. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Application Materials 
2. Notice of Exemption 
3. Resolution 

36

Item 4.



37

Item 4.



38

Item 4.



39

Item 4.



40

Item 4.



41

Item 4.



 
 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. P2023-07 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE OROVILLE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MAKING 
FINDINGS AND CONDITIONALLY APPROVING MINOR USE PERMIT#23-03, FOR 
ALCOHOL SALES AT LUCKYS FOOD AND GAS ON 2301 OROVILLE DAM BLVD 
EAST (APN 035-500-047) 
 

WHEREAS, the City has received an application for alcoholic beverage sales at 
Luckys Food and Gas at 2301 Oroville Dam Blvd East; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Oroville Municipal Code (OMC) Section 17.16.160 

specifies that a Use Permit is required to sell alcohol; and 
 

WHEREAS, at a duly noticed public hearing, the Planning Commission considered 
the comments and concerns of public agencies, property owners, and members of the 
public who are potentially affected by the approval of the use permit described herein, 
and also considered the City’s staff report regarding the change. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION as follows: 
 

1. This action has been determined to be exempt from the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) review pursuant to Title 14, California Code of Regulations, 
Section 15301 “Existing Facilities.” 
 

2. The Planning Commission approves the findings required by Section 17.16.160 of 
the Oroville City Code, as described in this Resolution; 

 

3. The Planning Commission approves the permit conditions described in this 
Resolution. 

 

Required Findings for Alcohol Sales (OMC 17.16.160) 

Before approving a use permit for alcohol sales, the Planning Commission must consider 
each of the following issues and make appropriate findings (Staff’s comments are in 
italics, draft findings are in the Resolution):  

1. The nature of all land uses within 500 feet of the proposed alcoholic 

beverage sales, and in particular, the location of similar nearby uses and the 

location of residences, parks, schools and houses of worship.  

Lucky Food and Gas is located on the corner of Oroville Dam Blvd East and 

Spencer Avenue in close proximity to similar retail and food stores. These 

retail and food uses include A-1 Kwik Services gas station, La Flor de 

Michoacan Homemade Ice Cream, Dutch Bros Coffee, and various banking 

and office services. There are not any nearby assembly areas and the 

closest residences are to the southeast, along Spencer and Brown Avenues. 

42

Item 4.



 
 

2 

2. Appropriate measures to provide proper maintenance of the building 

exterior, including provisions to keep the premises free of litter and debris. 

 The requirement is added to the project conditions.  

3. Lighting of exterior areas, including parking lots, to discourage loitering outside of 
the building. 

 The requirement is added to the project conditions.  

4. Protection of adjacent properties from noise, odors and undue light and glare, as 
well as illegal activity. 

 This requirement is added to the project conditions. Code compliance officers 
will monitor for compliance on an ongoing basis.  

 
5. Provision of onsite security, both inside and outside the building, to satisfy 

any concerns raised by the chief of police. 

 This requirement is added to the project conditions. Code compliance 

officers will monitor for compliance on an ongoing basis. 

6. Hours of operation. 

 Applicant states that the hours of operation are from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 
daily, which are unchanged from the existing operation. 

7. Controls on occupancy limits inside of the building and loitering outside of the 
building. 

 This requirement is added to the project conditions. Code compliance officers 
will monitor for compliance on an ongoing basis. 

8. Prevention of adverse effect of the use on the value of adjacent properties. 

As an existing gas station and market, this use permit is likely to enhance the 

patronage and thus the value of adjacent properties; 

9. Whether approval would result in an undue concentration of these uses, and 

whether public convenience or necessity would mitigate the issue of undue 

concentration. 

The Police Department and ABC determine if there is an undue 

concentration in the area. 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
Approved project: The Planning Commission hereby conditionally approves Use Permit 
No. 23-03, permitting alcoholic beverage sales in conjunction with the operation of Luckys 
Food and Gas at 2301 Oroville Dam Boulevard East (APN: 035-500-047). The subject 
property has a zoning designation of Corridor Mixed-Used (MXC) and a General Plan 
land use designation of Mixed Use (MU). Per the OMC Table 17.34.020-1, alcoholic 
beverage sales are land uses that require a use permit in MXC zones. 
 
 

43

Item 4.



 
 

3 

General Conditions 

1. The applicant shall hold harmless the City, its Council members, Planning 

Commissioners, officers, agents, employees, and representatives from liability for any 

award, damages, costs, and/or fees incurred by the City and/or awarded to any 

plaintiff in an action challenging the validity of this permit or any environmental or other 

documentation related to approval of this permit. Applicant further agrees to provide 

a defense for the City in any such action.  

2. The project shall remain in substantial conformance with the Conditions of Approval, 

as adopted by the Oroville Planning Commission. Any subsequent minor changes in 

the project (as determined by the Zoning Administrator) may only occur subject to 

appropriate City review and approval. Any subsequent substantive changes in the 

project (as determined by the Zoning Administrator) may only occur subject to 

discretionary review by the Oroville Planning Commission.   

3. The applicant shall annually pay for and obtain a City of Oroville business license. 

4. All private facilities, improvements, infrastructure, systems, equipment, common 

areas, etc. shall be operated and maintained by the applicant in such a manner, and 

with such frequency, to ensure the public health, safety and general welfare. 

5. All costs of operation and maintenance of private facilities, improvements, 

infrastructure, systems, equipment, common areas, etc. shall be the responsibility of 

the applicant. 

6. Pursuant to Section 17.12.010, the proposed use of the site shall conform to the 

performance standards of the Oroville Municipal Code to minimize any potential 

negative effects that the building, structure, lighting or use could have on its 

surroundings, and to promote compatibility with surrounding uses and areas.  

7. Applicable construction plans, calculations, specifications, applications, forms, etc. 

shall be submitted to the Building Division for review prior to the start of any 

construction activities requiring a building permit. All applicable plan review and 

development impact fees shall be paid at time of submittal.  

8. The applicant shall ascertain and comply with the requirements of all of City, County, 

State, Federal, and other local agencies as applicable to the proposed project.   

9. The project shall comply with the City’s noise ordinance as found in the OMC Chapter 

9.20.  

10. Pursuant to Section 17.48.010(F) of the City Code, the Planning Commission, upon 

its own motion, may modify or revoke any use permit that has been granted pursuant 

to the provisions of this section upon finding any of the following, based on substantial 

evidence:  

I. Any of the conditions of the permit have not been satisfied within 1 year 

after it was granted.  

II. Any of the terms or conditions of the permit have been violated.  

44

Item 4.



 
 

4 

III. A law, including any requirement in the Municipal Code Chapter 17, has 

been violated in connection with the permit.  

IV. The permit was obtained by fraud.  

11. Applicant hereby certifies that any and all statements and information provided as part 

of the application are true and correct to the best of their knowledge and belief. Any 

misinformation provided, whether intentional or unintentional, that was considered in 

the issuance of this permit may be grounds for revocation. 

12. Any roof mounted or ground placed utilities (HVAC, generators, etc.) shall include an 

architecturally compatible method of screening. This can include screening by 

landscaping or a decorative fence for ground placed utilities. 

13. Building shall be addressed per City requirements. Building numbers shall comply with 

City Code 17.20.050(A). 

14. A refuse collection enclosure shall be provided in accordance with City Code 

17.12.110. The refuse area shall be large enough to provide adequate storage for 

solid waste and recyclable materials generated by the use.  

15. The applicant shall submit to the City details of exterior lighting for review and 

approval. 

16. The applicant or property owner shall apply for the proper permits as required by OMC 

Chapter 17.20 prior to any new signage being erected.  

17. No more than 25% of the window area shall be covered with signs. This includes both 

permanent and temporary signs used to identify the business, products sold, or 

services offered.  

18. The exterior of the building, including windows and doors, shall be maintained, and 

with such frequency, to ensure the public health, safety and general welfare of the 

city. 

19. Windows and doors shall not be boarded up or blocked unless the appropriate 

approvals are received to ensure the public health, safety and general welfare. This 

does not include the use of plywood or other material used to cover a window for a 

temporary period of time that constitutes a safety hazard and/or invites trespassers 

and malicious mischief. 

20. Minor changes may be approved administratively by the Community Development 

Director or designee upon receipt of a written request by the applicant or designee.  

Changes deemed to be major or significant in nature shall require a formal application 

for amendment.  

21. Applicant and/or property owner will take appropriate measures to provide property 

maintenance of the building exterior, including provisions to keep the premise free of 

litter and debris.  

22. Applicant and/or property owner shall ensure adequate lighting of exterior areas, 

including parking lots, to discourage loitering outside of the buildings. 

45

Item 4.



 
 

5 

23. Applicant and/or property owner will ensure protection of adjacent properties from 

noise, odors and undue light and glare, as well as illegal activity.  

24. Applicant and/or property owner will maintain adequate onsite security, both inside 

and outside the building, to satisfy any concerns raised by the chief of police or general 

public. Alcoholic beverage sales establishments are required to submit and adhere to 

a security plan in accordance with OMC 17.12.100. 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was duly introduced and passed at a 
regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Oroville held on the 29th of 
September 2022, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT:  

ATTEST:           APPROVE:             
                                                                                                  
 
_______________________________              _______________________________ 
JACKIE GLOVER, ASSISTANT CITY CLERK     CARL DURLING, CHAIRPERSON 
 
 
 

46

Item 4.



1 OF 2 

 

 

City of Oroville 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2430   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

 

NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 
 

TO  
: 

Butte County Clerk FROM
: 

City of Oroville 

 155 Nelson Avenue  1735 Montgomery Street 
 Oroville, CA 95965  Oroville, CA 95965 

 

Project Title:  Minor Use Permit UP23-03 for Alcohol Sales at Luckys Food and Gas at 2301 Oroville 
Dam Boulelvard East. 

 
Project Location – Specific: 2301 Oroville Dam Boulevard East 
 
Project Location - City: City of Oroville 
 
Project Location – County: Butte 
 

Description of Nature, Purpose, and beneficiaries of project: The project applicant, Gurveen Gill, has 
applied for a Use Permit for Alcohol Sales at Luckys Food and Gas at 2301 Oroville Dam Boulevard East 
(APN 035-500-047). The applicant has submitted an ABC Type 20 license to conduct beer and wine sales 
for off-site consumption. The subject property has a zoning designation of Corridor Mixed use (MXC) and 
a General Plan land use designation of Mixed Use. 
 
Name of Public Agency Approving Project: City of Oroville   
 
Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project: Luckys Food and Gas  
 
Exempt Status (Check One): 
 

 Ministerial (Sec. 21080(b)(1); 15268) 
 Declared Emergency (Sec. 21080(b)(3); 15269(a)) 
 Emergency Project (Sec. 21080(b)(4); 15269(b)(c)) 
 Categorical Exemption: State type & section number:  

 General Rule Exemption; Title 14, CCR, §15061(b)(3) 

 Existing Facilities, Title 14, CCR, §15301 
 Statutory Exemption: State code number: 

Reasons why project is exempt: This action has been determined to be exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) review as follows: 

General Rule Exemption; Title 14, CCR, §15061(b)(3) 
This project involves the use of a property zoned MXC. The intent of the MXC zoning designation is to 
support an integrated and attractive network of commercial, employment, and residential uses along 
Oroville’s major thoroughfares. As the building is existing, no new construction is proposed, minor interior 
alterations will occur, all business activities will be contained within the building, and the proposed use 

47

Item 4.

http://www.cityoforoville.org/


2 OF 2 

 

will be subject to comply with all applicable City, County, State, Federal, and other local agencies as 
applicable, it has been determined that there is no possibility that the use permit request will have a 
significant effect on the environment. Thus, this action is exempt from CEQA. 
 
Existing Facilities, Title 14, CCR, §15301 
Class 1 categorical exemptions consist of the operation, repair, maintenance, permitting, leasing, 
licensing, or minor alteration of existing public or private structures. The project involves a change in use 
for the property intended to provide commercial uses with no proposed expansion of floor area or exterior 
modification.  
 
If filed by applicant: 
 

1. Attach certified document of exemption finding. 
2. Has a notice of exemption been filed by the public agency approving the project?  Yes  No 
 

Lead Agency Contact Person: Daniel Kopshever   Telephone: (530) 538-2517 
 

Signature:          Date:       

 Signed by Lead Agency 
 Signed by Applicant 

 
 

 

 

48

Item 4.



 1 

 

City of Oroville 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2430   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 
 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT Thursday, March 23, 2023 

RE: Linkside Place 2 Subdivision Tentative Map Extension #3 (Final) 

SUMMARY:  The Oroville Planning Commission may consider extending the existing Tentative 
Subdivision Map for Linkside Place 2 until June 10, 2024. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the following actions: 

1. Conduct a Public Hearing to consider extending the existing Subdivision Map. 

2. Approve the Map extension until April 26, 2024.  

3. Adopt Resolution No. P2023-04 extending the deadline for filing a Final Subdivision Map for 
TSM 07-04 for one year until June 10, 2024, with the stipulation that approval of the Final 
Map shall remain subject to all other conditions of approval identified in the Letter of Approval 
dated April 26, 2016.  

 

APPLICANTS: Sean O’Neill and Patrick Laughlin   

LOCATION:  Oroville Dam Blvd. West at 
Christian Ave, immediately south of and 
adjacent to the existing Linkside Place 1 
subdivision  

 

GENERAL PLAN:  MLDR  

ZONING:  R-1 

FLOOD ZONE:  Zone X  

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:   Covered by previous environmental document  

REPORT PREPARED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Wes Ervin, Senior Planner 
Community Development Department 

REVIEWED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Dawn Nevers, Assistant Director 
Community Development Director 

 
Community Development Director 

 

49

Item 5.

http://www.cityoforoville.org/


 2 

 

DISCUSSION  

The Linkside 2 project is a 56-lot single family residential development that is a 
continuation of the 65-lot single family residential development known as Linkside 
Place Phase 1 located directly to the north.  

On April 26, 2016, the Planning Commission approved an amendment to Tentative 
Subdivision Amp TSM 07-04, subject to the conditions of approval described in the 
Letter of Approval dated April 25, 2016. The Planning Commission subsequently 
approved a one-year extension of the Tentative Subdivision map at their October 24th, 
2019 meeting, and another extension at their October 22, 2020 meeting.  The new 
expiration date of the map was then set for December 10, 2021.  However, due to the 
recession, COVID and other factors, the State extended this and other maps for 18 
months – TSM 07-04 now expires on June 10, 2023. 

The project continues to move forward slowly.  On June 23, 2022, the Building 
Department approved the master plans and site plans for all parcels.  

If this extension is granted, the map would then NOT be eligible for any more 
extensions.  

FISCAL IMPACT  

None.  The project is subject to all customary fees. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Application and request for map extension 
2. Map of Linkside Place 2, Master Plans, and 2016 Project Approval Letter 
3. Resolution No P2023-04 

 

50

Item 5.



51

Item 5.



52

Item 5.



53

Item 5.



54

Item 5.



55

Item 5.



56

Item 5.



57

Item 5.



58

Item 5.



59

Item 5.



Draper Ranch Exterior Colors: REVISED 4.20.21 – roof colors 
 
Exterior #1: 
 
Roof Color: Certainteed Solaris  Georgetown Gray 

 
 
 
Body/Garage Door: SW7017 Dorian Gray 

 
 
 
Trim/Facia/Pop Outs: SW7008 Alabaster     Entry Door and Shutters: SW7624 Slate Tile 

   
 
 
Masonry: 
Brick – HC Muddox “Carob”     Stone: Coronado Virginia Ledge “Hillside” 

    
60

Item 5.



 
Exterior #2 
 
Roof Color: Certainteed Solaris Weathered Wood 

 
 
Body/Garage Door: SW7031 Mega Griege 

 
 
 
Trim/Facia/Stucco Pop Outs: SW7008 Alabaster   Entry Doors and Shutters: SW7032 Warm Stone 

   
 
 
Masonry: 
Brick: HC Muddox “Iron Mountain”    Stone: Coronado Artisan Ledge “Falmouth” 

   
61

Item 5.



Exterior #3 
 
Roof Color: Certainteed Solaris Georgetown Gray 

 
 
Body/Garage Door: SW7008 Alabaster 

 
 
 
Trim/Facia/Stucco Pop Outs: SW7033 Brainstorm Bronze    Entry Door and Shutters: SW0065 Vogue Green 

   
 
Masonry: 
Brick: HC Muddox “Sierra Slate”    Stone: Coronado Virginia Ledge “Coastal Brown 

   
62

Item 5.



Exterior #4 
 
Roof Color: Certainteed Solaris Weathered Wood 

 
 
Body/Garage Door: SW7517 China Doll 

 
 
 
Trim/Facia/Stucco Pop Outs: SW7502 Dry Dock   Entry Door and Shutters:  SW7509 Tiki Hut 

   
 
 
Masonry: 
Brick: HC Muddox “Sierra Slate”    Stone: Coronado Old World Ledge “Huron” 

   
63

Item 5.



64

Item 5.



65

Item 5.



66

Item 5.



67

Item 5.



68

Item 5.



69

Item 5.



70

Item 5.



71

Item 5.



72

Item 5.



73

Item 5.



74

Item 5.



75

Item 5.



76

Item 5.



77

Item 5.



78

Item 5.



79

Item 5.



CITY OF OROVILLE 
RESOLUTION NO. P2023-04 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION  

FOR A ONE-YEAR EXTENSION FOR TENTATIVE SUBDIVSION MAP NO. TSM 
07-04 (LINKSIDE PLACE 2) TO EXPIRE ON JUNE 10, 2024 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Oroville approved the application for amended Tentative 

Subdivision Map No. 07-01 on April 25, 2016 ; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission approved requests at their October 
24th,2019 meeting to extend the expiration of Tentative Subdivision Map No. 07-04 until 
December 10, 2020, then December 10, 2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, Tentative Subdivision Map No. 07-04 was extended several times 
via legislation by the State of California and now expires on June 10, 2023; and 
 

WHEREAS, Tentative Subdivision Map No. 07-04 is eligible to be extended by 
the City once more for up to one additional year; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Oroville has received a timely request to extend the date 
to record the final map; and 
 

WHEREAS, the site conditions and City regulations pertaining to the 
development of the map have not changed since the approval date of the Amended 
Map; and 
 

WHEREAS, the applicant has diligently worked on meeting conditions of 
approval for the Final Map.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oroville Planning Commission as 
follows: 
 

Section 1. Pursuant to California Government Code Section 66452.6 (a)(1) 

and the City of Oroville Code 16.12.020, Tentative Subdivision Map 

No. 07-04 is hereby granted a 12-month extension time to file a 

final map, with the new expiration date being June 10, 2024 

Section 2.  The Final Map shall remain subject to all other conditions of 

approval identified in the Letter of Approval dated April 26, 2016. 

  

80

Item 5.



I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was duly introduced and passed at a 

regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Oroville held on the 23rd day 

of March 2023, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT:  

ATTEST:           APPROVE:             

                                                                                                  

 

_______________________________              _______________________________ 

JACKIE GLOVER, ASSISTANT CITY CLERK     CARL DURLING, CHAIRPERSON 

 

81

Item 5.



 1 

 

City of Oroville 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2430   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

        
 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT Thursday, March 23, 2023 

RE: Minor Use Permit UP23-04 for a residential addition with attached garage to be used 
for a large family day care and future child day care center. 

SUMMARY:  The Oroville Planning Commission will review and consider approving Use Permit 
No. UP23-04 to allow a residential addition to be used for a large family day care and potential 
future child day care center. 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the following actions: 

 

1. Conduct a Public Hearing on the proposed project; 

2. Adopt the Notice of Exemption as the appropriate level of environmental review in 
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); 

3. Adopt the recommended Findings for Use Permit No. UP23-04; 

4. Approve Use Permit UP23-04 and recommended Conditions of Approval; 

5. Adopt Resolution No. P2023-06 

 

APPLICANT: Anthony Kinser 

LOCATION:  2093 Fogg Avenue (APN 
031-150-125)  
 
Use Permit Tracking #: PL2212-002 
Building Permit #: B2212-003 

 

GENERAL PLAN:  Medium Density Residential 
(MDR) 

ZONING:   Medium-Density Residential (R-2) 

FLOOD ZONE:  Zone X 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:   Categorically Exempt per Section 15301 of Title 14, 
California Code of Regulations, Existing Facilities.  

REPORT PREPARED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Daniel Kopshever, Assistant Planner 
Community Development Department 

REVIEWED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Dawn Nevers, Assistant Director 
Community Development Department 

82

Item 6.

http://www.cityoforoville.org/


 2 

DISCUSSION 

Anthony Kinser has applied for a Use Permit to allow for a child day care center to be 
conducted at 2093 Fogg Avenue. The property is currently zoned Medium Density 
Residential (R-2) with a General Plan Land Use Density of Medium Density Residential 
(MDR).  

There is currently a large family day care permitted at 2093 Fogg Avenue. According to 
the Oroville Municipal Code (OMC) 17.16.050 Family day care homes, a small family 
day care is permitted by right in all residential zones while a large family day care is 
subject to a permit application submitted in a form approved by the Zoning Administrator. 
Per OMC Table 17.28.010-1 Allowed Uses in Residential Districts, A child day care 
center requires a Use Permit.  

The existing residence is 2,006 square feet, plus 172 square feet of covered porch. 
Proposed is an addition of 3,644 livable square feet as well as a 2,080 square foot garage 
and 780 square feet of covered patio space.  The second story plans include a home gym 
area, study/office space, storage and bathroom. The proposed first floor addition shows 
the garage, utility space, covered patio, guest bedroom, child care area, 3 bathrooms, 
office, as well as 2 bedrooms and connection to the rest of the existing residence which 
contains the master bed room and bathroom, living room, kitchen and dining room areas. 
The proposed child care area is approximately 81 square feet and connects to the existing 
living room, office, and bedroom areas. 

 
ANALYSIS 

A child day care center is a more intensive use than a large family day care and is 
typically housed in a commercial building. To address this, the addition and remodeling 
of the residence is being conditioned via the Use Permit to include the necessary 
features that would permit a commercial occupancy of this type. While the Oroville 
Municipal Code allows child care facilities to be conducted with a Use Permit within the 
R-2 zoning district, the Department of Social Services will need to confirm that the 
owner/operator is allowed to live in the home while these services are being offered.  
Laura Chavez, Licensing Program Analyst, of the Department of Social Services 
Community Care Licensing Division will be making a determination regarding Title 22’s 
child care facility regulations and owner occupancy. 

Parking and access show 3 off-street parking spaces, one of which is handicap 
accessible. ADA compliant path of travel from the street to the entrance is also shown 
and is required of commercial buildings. There is adequate space available for vehicle 
access and circulation. 

Fire rated walls and floors as well as sprinkler systems shall be subject to building 
department and Fire Marshall approvals.  

A landscape plan in accordance with OMC 17.12.050 Landscaping Standards is 
needed to complete the Use Permit application. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT  
None.  The project is subject to all customary fees. 

83

Item 6.



 3 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
A request for comments was prepared and circulated to the local agencies and surrounding 
property owners within 500 feet of the property. Additionally, the meeting date, time, and 
project description were published in the Oroville Mercury Register and posted at 
City Hall. 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Application Materials 
2. Notice of Exemption 
3. Resolution 

84

Item 6.



 
 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. P2023-06 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE OROVILLE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MAKING 
FINDINGS AND CONDITIONALLY APPROVING UP#23-04, FOR A CHILD CARE 
FACILITY IN A PLANNED ADDITION TO AN EXISTING RESIDENCE ON 2093 FOGG 
AVENUE (APN 031-150-125) 
 

WHEREAS, the City has received a Use Permit application for a child care facility 
within an existing residence at 2093 Fogg Avenue; and 

 
WHEREAS, the property is zoned Medium-Density Residential (R-2); and 
 
WHEREAS, a Child Care Facility is an allowable use in R-2 zoning districts, subject 

to a Use Permit as shown by OMC Table 17.28.010-1 Allowed Uses in Residential 
Districts. As a condition of approval, the applicant will be required to comply with all 
requirements of the Department of Social Services Community Care Licensing Division; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, at a duly noticed public hearing, the Planning Commission considered 

the comments and concerns of public agencies, property owners, and members of the 
public who are potentially affected by the approval of the use permit described herein, 
and also considered the City’s staff report regarding the change. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION as follows: 
 

1. This action has been determined to be exempt from the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) review pursuant to Title 14, California Code of Regulations, 
Section 15332 “In-Fill Development Projects.” 
 

2. The Planning Commission approves the findings required by Section 17.16.160 of 
the Oroville City Code, as described in the Staff Report; 

 
3. The Planning Commission approves the permit conditions described in this 

Resolution. 
 

REQUIRED FINDINGS (OMC 17.48.010) FOR DRIVE THROUGH ESTABLISHMENTS 
 

a) The granting of the permit will not be incompatible with or detrimental to the 
general health, safety or public welfare of the surrounding area or of the city 
as a whole.   

The project will be in a location surrounded by residential development; 

b) The proposed use follows sound principles of land use by having a suitable 
location relative to the community as a whole, as well as to transportation 
facilities, public services and other land uses in the vicinity.  

85

Item 6.



 
 

2 

The proposed use will provide a desired commercial service, and is located in 
an area with significant employment and transportation access; 

c) Public utilities and facilities, including streets and highways, water and 
sanitation, are adequate to serve the proposed use or will be made adequate 
prior to the establishment of the proposed use.  

All infrastructure is in and available, especially if applicant meets all proposed 
conditions, and any future conditions imposed by the City or Caltrans,  

d) The location, size, design and operating characteristics of the proposed use 
will be harmonious and compatible with the surrounding neighborhood and 
will not adversely affect abutting properties.  

All abutting properties are also residential. The proposed use is compatible 
with the surrounding neighborhood; 

e) The subject site is physically suitable for the type and intensity of land use 
being proposed.  

Applicant has submitted a set of drawings demonstrating that the site is 
physically suitable for the proposed type and intensity of use. The site will 
provide adequate capacity for the use; 

f) The size, intensity and location of the proposed use will provide services that 
are necessary or desirable for the neighborhood and community as a whole.  

The residence is an existing permitted family day care home, and an 
expansion of capacity to a child care facility is desirable for the neighborhood 
and the entire community;  

g) The permit complies with all applicable laws and regulations, including the 
requirements of the general plan, of this title and of the city municipal code.  

The use is permitted, subject to a use permit, and is compatible with the 
General Plan, Zoning codes, and the Oroville Municipal Code. 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
Approved project: The Planning Commission hereby conditionally approves Use Permit 
No. 23-04, permitting a Child Care Facility at the proposed building addition on 2093 Fogg 
Avenue (APN 031-150-125). The subject property has a zoning designation of Medium 
Density Residential (R-2) and a General Plan land use designation of Medium Density 
Residential (MDR).  
 

General Conditions 

1. The applicant shall hold harmless the City, its Council members, Planning 

Commissioners, officers, agents, employees, and representatives from liability for any 

award, damages, costs, and/or fees incurred by the City and/or awarded to any 

plaintiff in an action challenging the validity of this permit or any environmental or other 

86

Item 6.



 
 

3 

documentation related to approval of this permit. Applicant further agrees to provide 

a defense for the City in any such action.  

2. The project shall remain in substantial conformance with the Conditions of Approval, 

as adopted by the Oroville Planning Commission. Any subsequent minor changes in 

the project (as determined by the Zoning Administrator) may only occur subject to 

appropriate City review and approval. Any subsequent substantive changes in the 

project (as determined by the Zoning Administrator) may only occur subject to 

discretionary review by the Oroville Planning Commission.   

3. The applicant shall annually pay for and obtain a City of Oroville business license. 

4. All private facilities, improvements, infrastructure, systems, equipment, common 

areas, etc. shall be operated and maintained by the applicant in such a manner, and 

with such frequency, to ensure the public health, safety and general welfare. 

5. All costs of operation and maintenance of private facilities, improvements, 

infrastructure, systems, equipment, common areas, etc. shall be the responsibility of 

the applicant. 

6. Pursuant to Section 17.12.010, the proposed use of the site shall conform to the 

performance standards of the Oroville Municipal Code to minimize any potential 

negative effects that the building, structure, lighting or use could have on its 

surroundings, and to promote compatibility with surrounding uses and areas.  

7. Applicable construction plans, calculations, specifications, applications, forms, etc. 

shall be submitted to the Building Division for review prior to the start of any 

construction activities requiring a building permit. All applicable plan review and 

development impact fees shall be paid at time of submittal.  

8. The applicant shall ascertain and comply with the requirements of all of City, County, 

State, Federal, and other local agencies as applicable to the proposed project.   

9. The project shall comply with the City’s noise ordinance as found in the OMC Chapter 

9.20.  

10. Each use permit shall be issued subject to the condition that the zoning administrator 

may inspect the premises for which the use permit is issued at any reasonable time 

to ensure compliance with the conditions of the use permit. Refusal to permit the 

zoning administrator to inspect the premises shall be rebuttably presumed to be 

grounds for revocation of the use permit. 

11. Pursuant to Section 17.48.010(F) of the City Code, the Planning Commission, upon 

its own motion, may modify or revoke any use permit that has been granted pursuant 

to the provisions of this section upon finding any of the following, based on substantial 

evidence:  

I. Any of the conditions of the permit have not been satisfied within 1 year 

after it was granted.  

II. Any of the terms or conditions of the permit have been violated.  

87

Item 6.



 
 

4 

III. A law, including any requirement in the Municipal Code Chapter 17, has 

been violated in connection with the permit.  

IV. The permit was obtained by fraud.  

12. Applicant hereby certifies that any and all statements and information provided as part 

of the application are true and correct to the best of their knowledge and belief. Any 

misinformation provided, whether intentional or unintentional, that was considered in 

the issuance of this permit may be grounds for revocation. 

13. Any roof mounted or ground placed utilities (HVAC, generators, etc.) shall include an 

architecturally compatible method of screening. This can include screening by 

landscaping or a decorative fence for ground placed utilities. 

14. Building shall be addressed per City requirements. Building numbers shall comply with 

City Code 17.20.050(A). 

15. The applicant shall submit to the City details of exterior lighting for review and 

approval. 

16. The applicant or property owner shall apply for the proper permits as required by OMC 

Chapter 17.20 prior to any new signage being erected.  

17. No more than 25% of any window area shall be covered with signs. This includes both 

permanent and temporary signs used to identify the business, products sold, or 

services offered.  

18. The exterior of the building, including windows and doors, shall be maintained, and 

with such frequency, to ensure the public health, safety and general welfare of the 

city. 

19. Windows and doors shall not be boarded up or blocked unless the appropriate 

approvals are received to ensure the public health, safety and general welfare. This 

does not include the use of plywood or other material used to cover a window for a 

temporary period of time that constitutes a safety hazard and/or invites trespassers 

and malicious mischief. 

20. Minor changes may be approved administratively by the Community Development 

Director or designee upon receipt of a written request by the applicant or designee.  

Changes deemed to be major or significant in nature shall require a formal application 

for amendment.  

21. Applicant and/or property owner will take appropriate measures to provide property 

maintenance of the building exterior, including provisions to keep the premise free of 

litter and debris.  

22. Applicant and/or property owner shall ensure adequate lighting of exterior areas, 

including parking lots, to discourage loitering outside of the buildings. 

23. Applicant and/or property owner will ensure protection of adjacent properties from 

noise, odors and undue light and glare, as well as illegal activity.  

88

Item 6.



 
 

5 

24. Applicant and/or property owner will maintain adequate onsite security, both inside 

and outside the building, to satisfy any concerns raised by the chief of police or general 

public. Substantial camera surveillance and written security protocols approved by the 

chief of police will suffice.  

 

Specific Project Permit Conditions 

1. The building addition shall result in the obtaining of building department and Fire 

Marshall approvals necessary to operate a child care facility.  

2. Signage is not included in this Use Permit. Any signage requiring permits will require 

a new building permit submittal. 

3. The quantity, locations and striping of all off-street parking shall be shown in the 

building plans upon permit submittal. 

 

***End of Conditions*** 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was duly introduced and passed at a 
regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Oroville held on the 26th of 
February 2023, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT:  

ATTEST:           APPROVE:             
                                                                                                  
 
_______________________________              _______________________________ 
JACKIE GLOVER, ASSISTANT CITY CLERK     CARL DURLING, CHAIRPERSON 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

89

Item 6.



1 OF 2 

 

  

City of Oroville 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2430   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

 

NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 
 

TO
: 

Butte County Clerk FROM
: 

City of Oroville 

 155 Nelson Avenue  1735 Montgomery Street 
 Oroville, CA 95965  Oroville, CA 95965 

 

Project Title:  Minor Use Permit UP23-04 for an addition to a single family residence for the operation of 
a Child Day Care Facility at 2093 Fogg Ave. 

 
Project Location – Specific: APN (031-150-125) 
 
Project Location - City: City of Oroville 
 
Project Location – County: Butte 
 

Description of Nature, Purpose, and beneficiaries of project: The project applicant, Anthony Kinser, has 
applied for a Use Permit for the operation of a Child Day Care Facility (APN: 031-150-125). The subject 
property has a zoning designation of Medium Density Residential (R-2) and a General Plan Land Use 
Designation of Medium Density Residential (R-2). 
 
Name of Public Agency Approving Project: City of Oroville   
 
Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project: Anthony Kinser 
 
Exempt Status (Check One): 
 

 Ministerial (Sec. 21080(b)(1); 15268) 
 Declared Emergency (Sec. 21080(b)(3); 15269(a)) 
 Emergency Project (Sec. 21080(b)(4); 15269(b)(c)) 
 Categorical Exemption: State type & section number:  

 General Rule Exemption; Title 14, CCR, §15061(b)(3) 

 In-Fill Development Projects, Title 14, CCR, §15332 
 Statutory Exemption: State code number: 

Reasons why project is exempt: This action has been determined to be exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) review as follows: 

General Rule Exemption; Title 14, CCR, §15061(b)(3) 
This project involves the use of a property zoned Medium Density Residential (R-2). The intent of the R-2 
zoning designation is to provide living areas within the city where development provides for medium-
density concentrations of dwelling units in varying housing types and styles. As the building is existing, all 
business activities will be contained within the building, and the proposed use will be subject to comply 
with all applicable City, County, State, Federal, and other local agencies as applicable, it has been 

90

Item 6.

http://www.cityoforoville.org/


2 OF 2 

 

determined that there is no possibility that the use permit request will have a significant effect on the 
environment. Thus, this action is exempt from CEQA. 
 
In-Fill Development Projects, Title 14, CCR, §15332 
Class 32 categorical exemptions consists of projects characterized as in-fill development meeting 
specific conditions a-e as described in this section. This project meets all conditions, including being 
consistent with the General Plan and Zoning Designation, occurs within City limits, has no value as 
habitat, will not result in any significant effects, and can be adequately served by all required utilities. The 
project is a permitted use in an R-2 zone, subject to a use permit. 
 
If filed by applicant: 
 

1. Attach certified document of exemption finding. 
2. Has a notice of exemption been filed by the public agency approving the project?  Yes  No 
 

Lead Agency Contact Person: Daniel Kopshever   Telephone: (530) 538-2517 
 

Signature:          Date:       

 Signed by Lead Agency 
 Signed by Applicant 

 
 

 

 

 

 

91

Item 6.



92

Item 6.



93

Item 6.



94

Item 6.



95

Item 6.



96

Item 6.


	Top
	Item 2.	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES - 2.23.2023
	02.23.2023 Minutes

	Item 3.	MINOR USE PERMIT FOR THREE PRIVATE PARKING GARAGES r 1801 MYERS STREET
	PC Staff Report PL2302-015 1801 Myers Quonset huts
	1801 Myers quonsut huts application PL2302-015
	PC Resolution PL2302-015 3 garages 1801 Myers
	landscape Plan 1801 Myers
	1801 Myers Drawings

	Item 4.	Luckys Food and Gas Use Permit Alcohol Sales
	PL2302-003 STAFF REPORT Lucky Food and Gas
	PL2302-003 APPLICATION MATERIALS Lucky Food and Gas
	PL2302-003 RESOLUTION Luckys Food and Gas Use Permit Alcohol Sales
	PL2302-003 NOE Lucky Food and Gas

	Item 5.	LINKSIDE PLACE 2 SUBDIVISION TENTATIVE MAP EXTENSION #3 (FINAL)
	PC Staff Report Linkside 2 2023 Final Extension
	Linkside Place 2 extension application PL2302-012
	Linkside 2 2023 Last TSM Extension Attachments
	Resolution No. P2023-04 Linkside Place 2 extension 2023

	Item 6.	Kinser Child Care Facility Use Permit
	PL2212-002 Kinser Staff Report
	PL2212-002 RESOLUTION Kinser Addition
	PL2212-002 NOE Kinser Addition
	PL2212-002 APPLICATION MATERIALS Kinser

	Bottom

